
 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 

AGENDA 
JANUARY 16, 2020 

6:00 P.M. 
Roll Call. 
 
Approval of Minutes: December 19, 2019. 
 
 
(1) BZA-1219-30 Cooper Smith is requesting a Variance for the Location of a 

Fence for the property located at 1200 Vestavia Place. The 
purpose of this request is to build a fence in the front setback to 
allow for privacy. The property is owned Cooper Smith and is 
zoned Vestavia Hills R-9. 

 
(2) BZA-0120-01 Kathryn O’Quinn is requesting a Side & Rear Setback Variance 

for the property located at 4224 White Oak Drive. The purpose of 
this request is to reduce the rear setback to 10’ in lieu of the 
required 15’ & to reduce the side setback to 2’ in lieu of the 
required 10’. The reason for this request is to build a detached 
garage. The property is owned by Kathryn O’Quinn and is zoned 
Vestavia Hills R-4.  

 
(3) BZA-0120-02 Jeanne Clayton is requesting a Rear Setback Variance for the 

property located at 3028 La Haven Circle. The purpose of this 
request is to reduce the setback to 15’ in lieu of the required 25’, to 
build a playroom. The property is owned by Jeanne Clayton and is 
zoned Vestavia Hills R-4. 

 
Time of Adjournment.  
 
 
   



BZA Minutes 
Page | 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
 

MINUTES 
 

December 19, 2019 
 
 The Board of Zoning Adjustment of the City of Vestavia Hills met in regular 
session on this date at 6:00 PM.  The roll was called with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Loring Jones, III, Acting Chairman 

Tony Renta, Alt 
      David Holley, Alt 

Jim Griffo 
George Ponder    

 Robert Gower 
       
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Rick Rice, Chairman 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jack Wakefield, Planner/GIS 
    
 

VARIANCE FOR THE LOCATION OF A FENCE 
 

BZA-1219-30 Cooper Smith is requesting a Variance for the Location of a 
Fence for the property located at 1200 Vestavia Place. The 
purpose of this request is to build a fence in the front setback to 
allow for privacy. The property is owned Cooper Smith and is 
zoned Vestavia Hills R-9. 

 
 Mr. Wakefield described the area where the property is located and read the review 
which included the purpose of the request, comprehensive plan and staff review. 
 
 Cooper Smith spoke briefly on his need for the fence and stated that the corner lot 
created a hardship 
 
 Mr. Ponder had concerns regarding sight distance. He stated that has been a 
problem in the past at that intersection.  
 
 Mr. Smith stated that he has discussed this with the City Engineer, Christopher 
Brady, and that Mr. Brady stated that there “appears” to be not sight distance issues.  
 
 Mr. Jones opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present in 
regard to the request, Mr. Jones closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a 
motion. 



BZA Minutes 
Page | 2 

 Because Mr. Brady was not definitive that there wouldn’t be any sight distance 
issues, the Board offered to postpone the case until next month so that the fence location 
can be staked to get a definitive answer regarding sight distance.  
 
 Mr. Smith agreed to the offer from the Board to postpone the case until the January 
2020 meeting date.  
  
 Case is postponed until January 16, 2020.  
 

FRONT SETBACK VARIANCE 
 
BZA-1219-31 Jacob Polson is requesting a Front Setback Variance for the 

property located at 3408 Hollingswood Circle. The purpose of this 
request is to reduce the setback to 32’ in lieu of the required 50’. 
The property is owned by Jacob Polson and is zoned Vestavia Hills 
R-2. 

 
 Mr. Wakefield described the area where the property is located and read the review 
which included the purpose of the request, comprehensive plan and staff review.  
 
 Justin Bohorfoush, of State Barganier Building, was present to speak on the case for 
the applicant.   
 
 Mr. Bohorfoush stated that they have drafted a covenants waiver, signed by all 
required neighbors, and recorded it with Jefferson County.  
 
 Mr. Jones opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present in 
regard to the request, Mr. Jones closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a 
motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve an 18’ front setback variance for the property located at 
3408 Hollingswood Circle was made by Mr. Griffo and 2nd was by Mr. Gower.  Motion 
was carried on a roll call vote as follows: 
 

Mr. Griffo - yes Mr. Gower – yes 
Mr. Holley – yes Mr. Ponder - yes   
Mr. Renta – yes Mr. Jones – yes      
Motion carried. 

 
 

REAR AND SIDE SETBACK VARIANCE 
 

BZA-1219-32 Martin Evans are requesting a Rear & Side Setback Variance for 
the property located at 2105 Mountain View Drive. The purpose 
of this request is to reduce the rear setback and side setback to 6’ in 
lieu of the required 15’. The property is owned by Martin Evan and 
is zoned Vestavia Hills R-2. 



BZA Minutes 
Page | 3 

 
 
 Mr. Wakefield described the area where the property is located and read the review 
which included the purpose of the request, comprehensive plan and staff review.  
 
 Martin Evans spoke on the case. He stated that if he were to build the garage by 
code it would not be able to be accessed by a full-sized vehicle. 
 
 Mr. Jones opened the floor for a public hearing.  
 
 Thomas Armstrong, of 2100 Vestavia Lake Drive, had concerns regarding a new 
impermeable structure/surface (garage and driveway) addition and what would happen to 
the rain water.  
 
 Mr. Jones stated the applicant cannot legally divert the natural flow of water. 
 
 Mr. Wakefield followed up and stated that when the applicant goes for a land 
disturbance permit with the engineering team, that applicant would have to abide by the 
storm water management regulations pertaining to that permit.  
 
 Mr. Wakefield offered to give Mr. Armstrong City Engineer Christopher Brady’s 
contact information so they can discuss the storm water management requirements 
pertaining to that permit.  
  
 Mr. Evans responded that he would be conscious to make sure the natural flow of 
water is not disturbed  
 
 Mr. Wakefield stated that there will be inspections, by the engineering team, of the 
work being done on the property. 
 
 Mr. Jones closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve a 9’ rear setback variance & a 9’ side setback variance 
for the property located at 2105 Mountain View Drive was made by Mr. Griffo and 2nd 
was by Mr. Ponder.  Motion was carried on a roll call vote as follows:   
  

Mr. Griffo - yes Mr. Gower – yes 
Mr. Holley – yes Mr. Ponder - yes   
Mr. Renta – yes Mr. Jones – yes      
Motion carried. 
      

 
Mr. Wakefield stated that the minutes were had not been discussed and directed Mr. 
Jones to bring forth the minutes.  
 
 
 



BZA Minutes 
Page | 4 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of November 21, 2019 were presented for approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of November 21, 2019 

was made by Mr. Griffo and 2nd was by Mr. Gower.  Motion as carried on 
a voice vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Griffo - yes Mr. Gower – yes 
Mr. Holley – yes Mr. Ponder - yes   
Mr. Renta – yes Mr. Jones – yes      
Motion carried. 

 
At 6:37 PM, Mr. Jones made a motion to adjourn. The meeting adjourned at 6:37 PM. 
 
Jack Wakefield, 
Planner/GIS 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
 

Date:     JANUARY 16, 2020 
 

• CASE:  BZA-1219-30 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION:   Variance For Front Yard Fence 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  1200 Vestavia Place 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Cooper Smith 
 
• REPRESENTING AGENT:  N/A 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Applicant is seeking a variance for a fence in the front 
yard. Applicant contends there is a hardship because the property is a corner lot. City 
Engineer, Christopher Brady, has inspected the property with the applicant regarding 
sight distance issues and fence placement. The property is currently zoned R-9. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  No problems noted.  

 
2. City Engineer Review:  Attached 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review:  No problems noted. 
 
4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted. 

 
 





















 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
 

Date:     JANUARY 16, 2020 
 

• CASE:  BZA-0120-01 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION:   8’ side setback variance to reduce the setback to 2’ in lieu 
of the required 10’ & a 5’ rear setback variance to reduce the setback to 10 in lieu of 
the required 15’.  

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  4224 White Oak Drive 

 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Kathryn O’Quinn 
 
• REPRESENTING AGENT:  N/A 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Applicant is seeking a side and rear setback variance to 
build a detached garage addition. The applicant contends there is a hardship because 
the lot is narrow and undersized. There is not enough space on the lot and the street to 
park their three cars. This placement is the best for access to the detached garage. After 
discussion with the Fire Marshall, he has no issue with the placement of the garage 
being 2’ off the property line. The applicant’s property is zoned Vestavia Hills R-4.  

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  No problems noted.  

 
2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review:  No problems noted. 
 
4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted. 

 
 















 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
 

Date:     JANUARY 16, 2020 
 

• CASE:  BZA-0120-02 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION:   10’ rear setback variance to reduce the setback to 15’ in 
lieu of the required 25.  

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3028 La Haven Circle 

 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Jeanne Clayton 
 
• REPRESENTING AGENT:  James Clayton 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Applicant is seeking a rear setback variance to build an 
addition. The applicant contends there is a hardship because the lot is oddly shaped and 
there are two easements behind the structure that limits buildable space. One of the 
easements is a large drainage easement that serves as a creek, and runs through the back 
of the property. This addition will not encroach into any easement on the property. 
According to the Building Official, confirmed that this is the rear setback and not the 
side. The applicant’s property is zoned Vestavia Hills R-4.  

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  No problems noted.  

 
2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review:  No problems noted. 
 
4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted. 

 
 


















	Agenda
	Minutes
	BZA-1219-30
	BZA-0120-01
	BZA-0120-02



